
Page 1 of 5 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT/PLANNING COMMISSION 

CITY OF LAKE SHORE 

CITY HALL 

MINUTES 

AUGUST 8, 2016 

9:00 AM 

 
Chairman John Ingleman called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m.  Members of the Commission 

present: John Ingleman, Kevin Egan, Roger Smeby and Glen Gustafson; Alternate Wayne 

Anderson; Council Liaison Earl North; City Engineer Mark Hallan; City Zoning Administrator 

Teri Hastings and City Clerk Patti McDonald.  Alternate Pat Hastings was absent.  There were 5 

people in the audience.  A quorum was present and the Commission was competent to conduct 

business. 

 

Approval of the July 11, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes – MOTION BY WAYNE ANDERSON 

TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FOR JULY 11, 2016 BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT/PLANNING 

COMMISSION AS PRESENTED.  KEVIN EGAN SECONDED THE MOTION.  MOTION 

PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

Variance Request – George Tetreault requested a variance for the purpose of constructing a new 

home with an attached garage (approximate footprint 3313 square feet) at a zero setback from the 

top of bluff and to excavate into the bluff for a partial walkout.  The proposed home will meet the 

75' lake setback, sideyard setback and Road Right of Way setback.  The property is legally 

described as Lot 26 and 27, Block 19,  Tingdale Brothers Sherwood Forest on  Gull Lake (site 

address is 8708 Interlachen Road) and is zoned medium density residential. 

 

The following documents became part of the record – Notice of mailing, notice of publication, 

signed application and attachments and staff report.  Teri read a letter of opposition into the 

record from Jim and Vicki Lundeen at 8722 Interlachen Road. 

 

Geroge Tetreault came before the Planning Commission to explain his application.  He and his 

wife Julie bought the property in 1990 with the thoughts of building a seasonal home.  That didn’t 

happen; they would like to build a year round dwelling and sell their home in Baxter.    He feels 

their request is reasonable and the building envelope at a 30’setback from the top of bluff and 50’ 

from the Road Right of Way is why they are here.  He said this is the last lot in the neighborhood 

to be developed and all the neighbors to the north have been built up to the top of the bluff; all 

they are basically asking to be treated like the neighbors were.  George’s said if they built within 

the building envelope the sewer designer indicated they would need a variance for the sewer 

installation to go in front of the house.  He also commented that the bluff impact is for slopes 

greater than 30 degrees and their property is 32 degrees; at the bottom of the bluff they don’t go 

directly into the water, there is 100’ of flat land before you get to the water.  He felt there was less 

of an impact if the slope were steeper or if they were to empty directly into the lake.  He said 

they’ve had the property since 1990 and the bluff is stable and he doesn’t see that changing. 

 

Roger asked if they built the guest shed himself.  George said they built it about 3 years ago.  Teri 

said they were given a permit for a shed; not a guest quarters.  Kevin confirmed there was no 

permit for a guest quarters.  George said the permit was for the structure; he said he’s not sure 

what makes it a guest quarters.  The structure is 20’ x 12’, it has two floors including a one car 

garage below; there is no running water, there is electricity; there are sleeping facilities.  Julie 

said she has never stayed there, but their children have stayed about 4 times. 

 



Page 2 of 5 

Kevin said the city hasn’t granted a variance for a walkout to build into the bluff in 20 years, if 

ever.  George said they are asking to have a partial walkout with daylight windows.  Kevin asked 

why we protect bluffs the way we do.  Teri said there may not be issues currently, but we do 

protect them especially with our sandy soils as they do give way; she gave two examples of the 

runoff from recent storms when the slope has given way and just slid down. 

 

Wayne asked about the gutter and underground drains; what happens when it gets to the front 

yard.  George said the ground crowns between the two properties (Lundeen’s) and he explained 

how he would have an area for a rain garden to keep the runoff on his property between the 

driveway and the drainfield.  Wayne is concerned about snow melt.  Is there a topo plan showing 

the final grades of the final project?  George said they should be included in the plans.  The 

lowest area on the property is between the Chelstroms’s (to the north) and their place.  Wayne 

said the gutter system looks good in theory. 

 

Earl North commented in his recollection the Planning Commission has never allowed new 

construction as a walkout into the bluff.  This application is quite an incursion into the bluff.  The 

DNR is quite zealous in protecting the bluff area.  Additionally, he doesn’t recall a zero clearance 

for a setback from the bluff.  He said from the city council point of view he wouldn’t look 

favorably on this request. 

 

Kevin Egan would agree with Earl and considers it quite a stretch for approval.  John Ingleman 

said he recognizes this is a unique piece of property, which creates the issues that have been 

discussed.  Wayne said looking at the excavation, it looks pretty clean, but to build the structure 

will require a lot more excavation dig down for 5’ footings and that would require about a 3 foot 

overcut to move around. 

 

Kevin asked if George was aware when he bought the property if it was a bluff.  He said that he 

was aware there was steepness to the property.   

 

Wayne asked if this is the minimum size for the structure they have considered.  George said 

there is an open courtyard they designed the house around but could redesign that and consider 

decreasing the depth of the house to reduce the roof area as an option.  Wayne said if they 

followed the building setback guidelines they could build a 30’ x 70’ house.  George said that 

doesn’t include the garage.  Teri said the building envelope is narrow so there is a warrant for the 

variance; it’s just the severity which could be lessened by redesigning the home.  She said it’s not 

the Planning Commission’s job to redesign the home for the applicant.  She commented that her 

discussion with the sewer designer, Martin Joyce, there is a concern with trying to fit a 

conforming septic system into the property. 

 

John Ingleman suggested the applicant take another look at their application and bring a revised 

plan to the Planning Commission.  George said that they would like the basement to have as 

much utility as possible including the walkout portion as a safety issue.  Kevin said the 

Commission is reluctant to negotiate here something that would be acceptable.  Wayne is still 

concerned about the amount of excavation.  Kevin suggested working close with Teri and 

bringing back something that might be more acceptable to the Commission.  Earl said with the 

understanding that they wouldn’t consider the walkout or daylight windows.  George said the 

neighbor has daylight windows.  Earl said the Commission doesn’t deal with what was built years 

ago; he said that this issue is new and there are ordinances that need to be followed. 

 

Teri’s staff report indicated the following:  The applicant is requesting a variance to construct a 

home and attached garage with a footprint of 3313 square feet at a zero setback from the top of 

bluff where a 30' setback is required.  The proposed home will meet the lake (Gull), sideyard and 

right of way setbacks.  



Page 3 of 5 

 

The lot is 28,620 square feet.  The buildable area is only 33' in depth and approximately 73' wide 

(approximately 2409 square feet).  A lot on a General Development lake is required to have 

30,000 square feet and 15,000 square feet of buildable area.  This lot is considered a pre-existing 

lot (platted in the 1930's prior to current ordinances).  The proposed home if it met all setbacks 

could not fit into the building envelope.   

 

The property is unique in that it has a decent amount of area but unique topography since it has a 

large level area below the bluff and the small building envelope created by the bluff.  

 

The applicants have had Martin Joyce, septic site evaluator to the property to do soil borings and 

to design a septic system.  The site plan for the system is included in the packet and the complete 

site evaluation and design is on file.  The system will be located 10' from the road right of way.  

Teri spoke with Martin Joyce about a pressure bed versus a trench design to accommodate an 

increased setback for the house from the bluff.   

 

The application indicates  there will be a walkout basement on the lakeside.  The applicant has 

estimated  22 cubic yards of material will be removed within the bluff for the walkout.  The home 

will be constructed  at the crest of the bluff.    

 

The applicants are proposing a deck on the lakeside of the home.  Typically decks (post footings) 

have been allowed within the bluff setback.   

 

The applicants have submitted elevation drawings of the proposed home.  The proposed home 

does not exceed the height requirement of the city and should fit in with the character of the 

neighborhood.   

 

The survey indicates the amount of impervious surface for the site to be 19.2% with the proposed 

improvements and driveway.  The city ordinance allows 20% impervious surface with an 

allowance to increase to 25% with a stormwater plan. 

 

The applicant has addressed runoff via drawings showing gutters and their outlet on the property.  

A neighbor has voiced concern about the drainage for the property since the neighborhood does 

have a problem with drainage. 

 

The applicant has not addressed how the walkout area will be protected during construction and 

afterwards.  What type of vegetation will be established?  Will retaining walls be needed? 

 

The applicant has not addressed  landscaping and screening.  The site is pretty well cleared  for 

building purposes. 

 

Teri has heard comments from neighboring properties regarding the shed (below the bluff) being 

used for habitation. 

 

It should be noted the driveway does have a turn around so vehicles do not need to back out onto 

the county road.  Backing out onto the county road should be avoided. 

 

Teri contacted WSB, Engineers for the County 77 project to receive feedback on the request and 

how it relates to the plans for County 77.  At this time, she hasn’t heard back from them. 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Practical difficulties are found with the property due to the bluff location and creating a small 

building envelope.  However, the concern that such a severe setback of zero feet from the bluff 



Page 4 of 5 

has been requested and a to excavate into the bluff to create a walkout basement is excessive.  

The applicant was aware that lot contained a bluff when he purchased it (Landecker letter 

provided by the property owner).  The allowing of a walkout within the bluff has not been granted 

by the city in 20 plus years if ever.  The city has considered variance requests less than 30 feet 

from the top of bluff .  This request is at a zero setback.  Teri would recommend that the 

application as submitted be denied with the consideration that a revised application be submitted 

showing a greater setback from the bluff other than 0 and no walkout.    

 

George Tetreault withdrew his application and will work with Teri on what he will bring 

forward to the Commission.  They will come back with a new plan.  Teri asked the Tetreault’s for 

something in writing stating their withdrawn application.   

 

NEW BUSINESS –  
 

Temporary Family Health Care Dwellings - Teri’s staff report indicated the following:  

Included in the packet is information relating to a new law enacted in the most recent legislative 

session relating to temporary family health care dwellings.  The law will add a new Minnesota 

Statute Section 462.3593; the law basically allows a small temporary structure to be placed on 

land, more than likely, a structure that has not been contemplated by the city.  If the city chooses 

to do nothing, persons can make an application, and even if the city's current zoning ordinance 

would not allow the structure, this statute could force the city to issue a permit. 

 

The legislation specifically allows cities to opt-out.  Opting out would allow the city to study the 

issue to determine if this type of housing is appropriate for the city and would allow the city to set 

its own guidelines.  In order to  opt-out, the City Council will need to pass a resolution by the end 

of August 2016.  Teri suggested the Planning Commission recommend to the City Council 

adoption of the resolution opting out in order to study the matter further before adopting 

regulations. 

 

John Inglaman asked if the statute defines temporary.  Teri said it does and there are a lot of 

things to address before any regulations are established.   

 

MOTION BY WAYNE ANDERSON TO RECOMMEND FROM THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION ASKING THE CITY COUNCIL TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO OPT OUT 

OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR TEMPORARY FAMILY HEALTH CARE DWELLINGS.  

KEVIN EGAN SECONDED THE MOTION.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

OLD BUSINESS –  

Update on Friesen/Stone Ridge Townhomes – Teri said that our city attorney is still talking with 

the Friesen’s attorney on an agreeable compromise on the tree removal across from Stone Ridge. 

 

REPORTS 

City Engineer – Mark Hallan had nothing to report. 

 

Chairman – John Ingleman asked if the County 77 road project will take care of some of the 

concerns with the applicants that were here before the Commission today.  Teri said it will 

probably take care of some of the drainage concerns.  Kevin asked if the Tetreault’s should’ve 

come in for a permit for the living quarters.  She said they did get a permit for a shed; although 

they added the upper level for quasi guest quarters.  Wayne asked when it crosses the line as 

being considered an occupied space.  Teri said by definition it is allowable.  In 2009, the city 

revised the ordinance which allows guest quarters above garages with plumbing. 

 



Page 5 of 5 

Council Liaison – Earl North said that after he reviewed the Tetreault application, he reviewed 

the County 77 road improvement plans and this is an area that will need retention ponds to catch 

the runoff.  He is curious about what the Engineer on the project will have to say about that 

particular area. 

 

Zoning Administrator – Teri Hastings said that with the heavy rainfall a couple weeks ago and the 

high water levels created an advisory for no wake within 300 feet of the shoreline.  She said there 

is a mechanism to put in an emergency no wake into place when the water reaches a certain 

elevation; the no wake would trigger automatically.  She has talked with Fairview Township and 

East Gull Lake for input as to how to approach Cass County to help enact a plan. 

 

PUBLIC FORUM – There was no public forum. 

 

MOTION BY WAYNE ANDERSON TO ADJOURN THE BOARD OF 

ADJUSTMENT/PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING OF AUGUST 8, 2016 @ 9:48 AM.  

GLEN GUSTAFSON SECONDED THE MOTION.  MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

 
Transcribed by Patti McDonald 

Lake Shore City Clerk 


